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No. 2010-44 
 
 
DATE:  July 14, 2010 
 

TO:  Transportation Advisory Board 
 

FROM: Technical Advisory Committee 
 

SUBJECT: Vehicle Mode Reassignment Request for Metropolitan Council CMAQ 
Award SP#TRS-TCMT-10C: Purchase 15 Buses for Fleet Expansion and 
Southwest Transit CMAQ Award SP#TRS-SMTC-10A: Purchase 10 
Buses for Fleet Expansion.  

 
MOTION:   The TAC forwards this action item to the TAB without a recommendation 
to reallocate the CMAQ funds awarded for these two projects because it does not follow 
established procedures.  Specifically, this would be the first time two projects were 
eliminated in favor of an unscored project with the funds being used for that unscored 
project.  Additionally, the total funds being used for this unscored project would exceed 
the maximum amount of Federal funds allowed for any one project under the original 
solicitation. 
 
BACKGROUND AND PURPOSE OF ACTION: The transit buses to be purchased in the 
two projects identified above are no longer needed due to lower than expected available 
operating funds.  The proposed change is supported by Southwest Transit. 
 
The TAC Funding & Programming Committee and the full TAC had lengthy discussions 
on the request. While there was general agreement that the request was for a more 
impactful project than the two service expansion bus purchases being withdrawn, there 
was much concern with the process being followed. The committee did not feel it was 
able to make a recommendation on a request that was outside of established 
procedures and asked the TAB to make this decision and consider several points of 
discussion. 
 
The merits of the project identified by the committee were: 

• Metro Transit is preparing an order for Central Corridor LRVs within the next 
year, and purchasing in bulk yields significant cost savings because LRVs are 
specialized products unlike buses. 

• If the TAB decided to reprogram these funds for the next solicitation, Metro 
Transit would apply for LRVs for Hiawatha, and would likely be funded, but the 
opportunity for bulk purchasing would be lost. 

• Light Rail Vehicles (LRV) for Hiawatha scored by far the highest in most recent 
solicitation. 
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Comments against the proposal were the following: 

• This request does not resemble the original applications. However, the 
Metropolitan Transportation Services application is more flexible because it was 
for regional transit improvements; the Southwest Transit application was to serve 
a different market than Hiawatha. 

• The request sets a precedent in turning over the funding for two projects to one 
project that was not scored in the solicitation and awarding an amount above the 
$7 million federal  maximum established in TAB policy. 

• Other agencies did not have a chance to compete for these funds. 
 
Other points of discussion: 

• Returning the funds to the region to be reprogrammed in 2015 following the next 
solicitation creates some trouble for managing and balancing the TIP and STIP. It 
would be preferable to reprogram funds in the same year as a withdrawn project. 
The TAC Funding & Programming Committee should begin dealing with this 
issue at a future meeting. 

• This funding dilemma points to the difficulty in allocating CMAQ funding to transit 
projects that do not take as long to assemble as highway projects and the needs 
are not clear four years in advance. 

• The reallocation of these CMAQ funds would not replace the funding already 
programmed in the draft 2011-2014 TIP for LRV purchases. 

• The TAC discussed allocating CMAQ funds for transit expansion projects based 
on priorities or ranked projects contained in a regional CIP rather than through 
the competitive applications. 
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Transportation Advisory Board 
of the Metropolitan Council of the Twin Cities  
 
 
TO: Transportation Advisory Board 
 
FROM: Kevin Roggenbuck, Transportation Coordinator 
 
DATE: July 19, 2010 
 
RE: TAB Action Transmittal 2010-44 - Vehicle Mode Reassignment Request: Options for 

TAB consideration. 
____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
This memo and the attached letter from Metropolitan Council Chair Peter Bell are provided as 
supplemental information to TAB Action Transmittal 2010-44, which is on the agenda for both 
the TAB Programming Committee and full TAB meetings on July 21, 2010. 
 
On July 14, TAB Executive Committee members Bill Hargis, Jim Hovland and Russ Stark met 
with Metropolitan Council Chair Peter Bell, Metropolitan Council Regional Administrator Tom 
Weaver and Metropolitan Transportation Services Director Arlene McCarthy.  The group 
discussed the Metropolitan Council’s request to reassign CMAQ funding awarded to two transit 
bus purchases in the 2005 regional solicitation to the purchase of LRT vehicles for Hiawatha 
next year.  Chair Bell made some important points at the meeting that the group agreed should 
be drafted into a letter and provided to the TAB for discussion at their July 21 meetings.  Chair 
Bell’s letter is attached to this memo. 
 
In deciding how to reallocate these CMAQ funds, the TAB can follow established policy and not 
reallocate these funds as requested by the Met Council or it can decide to reallocate the funds 
through a new policy or a one-time policy exception.  The group asked staff to provide options 
for the TAB to consider.  Four options are listed below, although the Board is not limited to just 
these four. 
 
Options. 

1. Continue to apply the adopted policy of reallocating federal funds from dropped local 
projects in the following regional solicitation.  The CMAQ funding for the two bus 
purchase projects would be dropped from the TIP and the CMAQ funds would be added 
to the 2011 regional solicitation. 

2. Treat the request like a project scope change and allow the CMAQ award to MTS 
($5.885 M) to be changed to Hiawatha LRT vehicle purchase.  The other bus purchase 
($4.365 M) would be dropped from the TIP and the CMAQ funds would be added to the 
2011 regional solicitation. 

3. Develop a new regional policy on the reallocation of federal funds from local projects that 
are dropped from the TIP.  The new policy would allow the CMAQ funds from the two bus 
purchases to be reallocated to the Hiawatha LRT vehicle purchase or any other CMAQ-
eligible transit project that can be ready for authorization in program year 2011. 

4. Allow reallocation of the CMAQ funds from the two bus purchases for Hiawatha LRT 
vehicle purchase and develop new regional policy on the reallocation of federal funds 
from local projects that are dropped from the TIP. 
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